001503/23

In accordance with Sections 859A and 859J of the Companies Act 2006

MR01

Particulars of a charge



	Go online to file this information www.gov.uk/companieshouse A fee is be payable with this form Please see 'How to pay' on the	MANUN 1211 121128 11284 11211 21128 1111 121420 11 1886
1	What this form is for You may use this form to register a charge created or evidenced by an instrument. What this form is NOT for You may not use this form to register a charge where there is instrument. Use form MR08.	*A7FCHFGP* A26 27/09/2018 #362 COMPANIES HOUSE
	This form must be delivered to the Registrar for registration within 21 days beginning with the day after the date of creation of the charge. If delivered outside of the 21 days it will be rejected unless it is accompanied by a court order extending the time for delivery.	
	You must enclose a certified copy of the instrument with this form. This will be scanned and placed on the public record. Do not send the original.	
1	Company details	For official use
Company number Company name in full	0 7 3 2 2 9 5 0 EIGHT19 LIMITED	→ Filling in this form Please complete in typescript or in bold black capitals.
. ,		All fields are mandatory unless specified or indicated by *
2	Charge creation date	
Charge creation date	$\begin{bmatrix} d & 1 & d & 0 & 0 \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} m & 0 & m & 0 \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} m & 0 & 0 & 0 \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} m & 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} m & 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 \\ 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 & 0$	
3	Names of persons, security agents or trustees entitled to the	charge
	Please show the names of each of the persons, security agents or trustees entitled to the charge.	
Name	IP2IPO LIMITED	_
Name	CLARIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED	_
Name	PROVIDENCE INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED	_
Name	LUCROS INVESTMENT B.V.	_
	If there are more than four names, please supply any four of these names then tick the statement below.	_
	I confirm that there are more than four persons, security agents or trustees entitled to the charge.	

MR01 Particulars of a charge **Brief description** Please give a short description of any land, ship, aircraft or intellectual property Please submit only a short description If there are a number of registered or required to be registered in the UK subject to a charge (which is plots of land, aircraft and/or ships, not a floating charge) or fixed security included in the instrument. you should simply describe some of them in the text field and add a Brief description Contains fixed charge(s). statement along the lines of, "for more details please refer to the Contains floating charge(s) (floating charge covers all the property or instrument". undertaking of the company). Please limit the description to the available space. Contains negative pledge. Other charge or fixed security Does the instrument include a charge (which is not a floating charge) or fixed security over any tangible or intangible or (in Scotland) corporeal or incorporeal property not described above? Please tick the appropriate box. Yes \square No Floating charge Is the instrument expressed to contain a floating charge? Please tick the appropriate box. ✓ Yes Continue No Go to Section 7 Is the floating charge expressed to cover all the property and undertaking of the company? ablaYes **Negative Pledge** Do any of the terms of the charge prohibit or restrict the company from creating further security that will rank equally with or ahead of the charge? Please tick the appropriate box. \square Yes No Trustee statement • • This statement may be filed after You may tick the box if the company named in Section 1 is acting as trustee of the registration of the charge (use the property or undertaking which is the subject of the charge. form MR06). Signature Please sign the form here. Signature Signature X X This form must be signed by a person with an interest in the charge.

Presenter information

You do not have to give any contact information, but if you do, it will help Companies House if there is a query on the form. The contact information you give will be visible to searchers of the public record.

'	
Contact name	Hannah Coote
Company name	IP2IPO Limited
Address	The Walbrook Building
25 Wall	orook
Post town	London
County/Region	London
Postcode	E C 4 N 8 A F
Country	United Kingdom
DX	
Telephone	02074440050

✓ Certificate

We will send your certificate to the presenter's address if given above or to the company's Registered Office if you have left the presenter's information blank.

✓ Checklist

We may return forms completed incorrectly or with information missing.

Please make sure you have remembered the following:

- ☐ The company name and number match the information held on the public Register.
- ☐ You have included a certified copy of the instrument with this form.
- You have entered the date on which the charge was created.
- ☐ You have shown the names of persons entitled to the charge.
- ☐ You have ticked any appropriate boxes in Sections 3, 5, 6, 7 & 8.
- ☐ You have given a description in Section 4, if appropriate.
- ☐ You have signed the form.
- ☐ You have enclosed the correct fee.
- ☐ Please do not send the original instrument; it must be a certified copy.

Important information

Please note that all information on this form will appear on the public record.

£ How to pay

A fee of £23 is payable to Companies House in respect of each mortgage or charge filed on paper.

Make cheques or postal orders payable to 'Companies House.'

✓ Where to send

You may return this form to any Companies House address. However, for expediency, we advise you to return it to the appropriate address below:

For companies registered in England and Wales: The Registrar of Companies, Companies House,

Crown Way, Cardiff, Wales, CF14 3UZ. DX 33050 Cardiff.

For companies registered in Scotland:

The Registrar of Companies, Companies House, Fourth floor, Edinburgh Quay 2, 139 Fountainbridge, Edinburgh, Scotland, EH3 9FF. DX ED235 Edinburgh 1 or LP - 4 Edinburgh 2 (Legal Post).

For companies registered in Northern Ireland:

The Registrar of Companies, Companies House, Second Floor, The Linenhall, 32-38 Linenhall Street, Belfast, Northern Ireland, BT2 8BG. DX 481 N.R. Belfast 1.

Further information

For further information, please see the guidance notes on the website at www.gov.uk/companieshouse or email enquiries@companieshouse.gov.uk

This form is available in an alternative format. Please visit the forms page on the website at www.gov.uk/companieshouse



CERTIFICATE OF THE REGISTRATION OF A CHARGE

Company number: 7322950

Charge code: 0732 2950 0005

The Registrar of Companies for England and Wales hereby certifies that a charge dated 10th September 2018 and created by EIGHT19 LIMITED was delivered pursuant to Chapter A1 Part 25 of the Companies Act 2006 on 27th September 2018.

Given at Companies House, Cardiff on 4th October 2018







(1) IP2IPO LIMITED

- (2) CLARIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED
- (3) PROVIDENCE INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED
 - (4) LUCROS INVESTMENT B.V.
 - (5) EIGHT19 LIMITED

 	
DEBENTURE	

Certified as a true copy of the original

Signature: 21. Coole

Name: HANNAH COOTE

Position: SOLICITOR

Address: THE WALBROOM BUILDING

Date: 21/09/2018

25 WALBROOK,

LONDON, ECHN SAF

CONTENTS

Clause		Page
1.	Interpretation	3
2	Covenant to Pay	6
3.	Creation of Fixed Security	6
4.	Floating Charges	7
5.	Continuing Security	8
6.	Representations And Warranties	9
7.	Undertaking	11
8.	Enforcement of Security	11
9.	Receiver	12
10.	Application of Proceeds	14
11.	Protection of Third Parties	14
12.	Taxes	14
13.	Costs and Expenses	14
14.	Delegation by security trustee	14
15.	Power of Attorney	15
16.	Assignments, etc	15
17.	Further Assurance	15
18.	Waivers & Remedies Cumulative	15
19.	Notices	15
20.	Counterparts and Effectiveness	16
21.	Covenant to Release	16
22.	Governing Law	16

THIS DEBENTURE ("Debenture") is made as a deed on 10 September 2018

BETWEEN

- (1) IP2IPO LIMITED (company registration number 04072979) whose registered office is at Walbrook Building, 25 Walbrook, London EC4N 8AF ("IP2IPO");
- (2) CLARIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED (company number 68037) whose registered office is at Gaspe House, 66-72 The Esplanade, St Helier, Jersey JE2 3QT ("Clarium");
- (3) PROVIDENCE INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED (company number 1063425) whose registered office is at Gaspe House, 66-72 The Esplanade, St Helier, Jersey JE2 3QT ("Providence");
- (4) LUCROS INVESTMENT B.V. (company number 6109 9619) whose registered office is at Kleine Houtweg 113, 2012 CE, Haarlem, The Netherlands ("Lucros");

((IP2IPO, Clarium, Providence and Lucros together the "Chargees" and each a "Chargee")); and

(5) EIGHT19 LIMITED (company registration number 07322950) whose registered office is at Unit 9a Cambridge Science Park, Milton Road, Cambridge, Cambridgeshire CB4 0FE (the "Chargor").

1. INTERPRETATION

"Equipment"

1.1 Definitions

In this Debenture the following terms have the meanings given to them in this clause 1.1, except where the context otherwise requires:

except where the context otherwise requires.		
"Acceleration Event"	means the occurrence of an Event of Default in respect of which the Security Trustee has served a notice on the Chargor requiring repayment in accordance with clause 7 of the Secured Loan Agreement;	
"Book Debts"	means all present and future book and other debts, and monetary claims due or owing to the Chargor, and the benefit of all security, guarantees and other rights of any nature enjoyed or held by the Chargor in relation to them;	
"Business Day"	means any day other than a Saturday, Sunday or a day which, by law, is a bank or legal holiday in England;	
"Charged Property"	ail the assets, property and undertaking of the Chargor for the time being, subject to the security interests created by this Debenture (and references to the Charged Property shall include references to any part of it);	
"Default Rate"	means the default interest rate payable under clause 5 of the Secured Loan Agreement;	
"Encumbrance"	means any interest or equity of any person including, without limitation, any right to acquire, option or right of pre-emption or any mortgage, charge, pledge, lien, security interest or other third party right or interest (legal or equitable) over or	

in respect of the relevant asset, security or right;

means all present and future equipment, plant, machinery, tools, vehicles, furniture, fittings, installations and apparatus

and other tangible moveable property for the time being owned by the Chargor, including any part of it and all spare parts, replacements, modifications and additions;

"Event of Default"

means an Event of Default occurring as set out in clause 15 of the Secured Loan Agreement;

"Finance Documents"

means the Secured Loan Agreement, this Debenture and any other document designated as such by agreement between the Security Trustee and the Chargor;

"Insurance Policies"

all the contracts and policies of insurance effected or maintained by the Chargor from time to time in respect of its assets or business (including, without limitation, any insurances relating to the Properties or the Equipment);

"Intellectual Property"

the Chargor's present and future patents, trade marks, service marks, trade names, designs, copyrights, inventions, topographical or similar rights, confidential information and know-how and any interest in any of these rights, whether or not registered, including all applications and rights to apply for registration and all fees, royalties and other rights derived from, or incidental to, these rights;

"Investments"

all present and future stocks, shares, loan capital, securities, bonds and investments (whether or not marketable) for the time being owned (at law or in equity) by the Chargor, including all rights accruing or incidental to those investments from time to time:

"Permitted Security"

means (i) any security created by this Debenture or any other security documents; (ii) liens arising by operation of law and in the ordinary course of trading; (iii) security arising out of title retention or set off provisions in a supplier's standard conditions of supply of goods where the goods in question are supplied on credit and are acquired by the Chargor in the ordinary course of trading; and (iv) any other security to which the Security Trustee has given its prior written consent;

"Properties"

all freehold and leasehold properties (whether registered or unregistered) and all commonhold properties, now or in the future (and from time to time) owned by the Chargor, or in which the Chargor holds an interest and "**Property**" means any of them;

"Receiver"

means an administrative receiver, a receiver and manager or other receiver, in either case, appointed pursuant to this Debenture;

"Secured Loan Agreement"

means the secured loan agreement in respect of up to £290,000 interest bearing facility between the Chargor and the Chargees dated the same date as this Debenture;

"Secured Obligations"

means all present and future obligations and liabilities, whether actual or contingent and whether owed jointly or severally, as principal or surety and/or in any other capacity whatsoever, owed by the Chargor to the Chargees under or in connection with the Finance Documents together with all costs, charges and expenses incurred by the Security Trustee in connection with the protection, preservation or enforcement of its rights under the Finance Documents;

"Security Period"

means the period beginning on the date of this Debenture and ending on the date upon which the Security Trustee are reasonably satisfied that:

- it is not under any commitment, obligation or liability (whether actual or contingent) to make advances or provide other financial accommodation to the Chargor under or in connection with any Finance Document; and
- (b) all of the Secured Obligations have been unconditionally and irrevocably paid and/ or discharged in full; and

"Security Trustee"

means IP2IPO.

- 1.1.1 Unless expressly defined in this Debenture, capitalised terms defined in the Secured Loan Agreement shall have the same meanings in this Debenture and the construction rules for references set out in the Secured Loan Agreement shall apply to such references in this Debenture.
- Unless otherwise stated, all references in this Debenture to this Debenture or to any other agreement or document shall be construed as a reference to this Debenture or such other agreement or document as amended, varied, novated or supplemented from time to time and any reference to this Debenture or such other agreement or document shall, unless otherwise stated, include any agreement or document effecting such amendment, variation, novation or supplementation.
- 1.1.3 Unless the context otherwise requires:
 - (i) "Clause", "paragraph" or "Schedule" shall, unless otherwise specified herein, be construed as a reference to a clause, paragraph or schedule of this Debenture;
 - (ii) words importing the singular shall include the plural and vice versa;
 - (iii) persons shall include bodies corporate and other legal entities and vice versa;
 - (iv) headings are for convenience only and shall not affect the construction hereof; and
 - (v) references to any party or other person shall be deemed to be references to or to include, as appropriate, their respective successors, and permitted transferees and assigns.

1.2 Certificates

A certificate of the Security Trustee setting forth the amount of any Secured Obligation due from the Chargor shall be conclusive evidence of the existence and amount of such Secured Obligations.

1.3 Statutes

Any reference in this Debenture to a statute or statutory provision includes references to such statute or provision as amended or re-enacted whether before or after the date of this Debenture and includes all subordinate legislation made under the relevant statute whether before or after the date of this Debenture.

1.4 Effect as a Deed

This Deed is intended to take effect as a deed notwithstanding the fact that a party may only execute this Deed under hand.

1.5 Third Party Rights

A person who is not a party to this Debenture has no rights under the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 to enforce any term of this Debenture. For this avoidance of doubt, Lucros shall only be deemed a party to this Debenture upon satisfaction of Clause 4.2 of the Secured Loan Agreement.

1.6 Clawback

If the Security Trustee consider that an amount paid by the Chargor in respect of the Secured Obligations is capable of being avoided or otherwise set aside on the liquidation of administration of the Chargor or otherwise, then that amount shall not be considered to have been irrevocably paid for the purposes of this Debenture.

2. COVENANT TO PAY

2.1 Covenant to Pay

The Chargor hereby, as primary obligor and not merely as surety, covenants with the Security Trustee and the Chargees that it will pay or discharge each of the Secured Obligations in the manner provided for in the relevant Finance Document.

2.2 Default Interest

The Chargor agrees that any amount not paid when due under this Debenture shall bear interest pursuant to the terms of the Secured Loan Agreement (after as well as before judgment) payable on demand at the Default Rate from the due date until the date such amount is unconditionally and irrevocably paid and discharged in full.

3. CREATION OF FIXED SECURITY

3.1 First Fixed Charge

As continuing security for the payment, discharge and performance of all of the Secured Obligations and in favour of the Security Trustee, the Chargor, with full title guarantee in accordance with the Law of Property Act (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1994, hereby:

- 3.1.1 charges by way of first fixed charge:
 - (a) all Properties acquired by the Chargor;
 - (b) all present and future interests of the Chargor not effectively mortgaged or charged under the preceding provisions of this clause 3.1 in, or over, freehold or leasehold property;
 - (c) all present and future rights, licences, guarantees, rents, deposits, contracts, covenants and warranties relating to each Property;
 - (d) all licences, consents and authorisations (statutory or otherwise) held or required in connection with the Chargor's business or the use of any of the Charged Property, and all rights in connection with them;
 - (e) all its present and future goodwill and uncalled capital;
 - (f) all the Equipment;
 - (g) all the Intellectual Property;
 - (h) all the investments; and
- 3.1.2 assigns to the Security Trustee absolutely, subject to a proviso for reassignment on irrevocable discharge in full of the Secured Liabilities, all its rights in each

Insurance Policy, including all claims, the proceeds of all claims and all returns of premiums in connection with each Insurance Policy.

4. FLOATING CHARGES

4.1 Creation of Floating Charges

The Chargor, with full title guarantee in accordance with the Law of Property (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1994 and by way of a first floating charge, charges in favour of the Security Trustee as continuing security for the payment, discharge and performance of the Secured Obligations:

- 4.1.1 the Book Debts;
- 4.1.2 all moneys (including interest) from time to time standing to the credit of each of its present and future accounts with any bank, financial institution or other person in any jurisdiction and all rights in relation thereto and the debts represented thereby; and
- 4.1.3 all the other undertaking, property, assets and rights of the Chargor not validly and effectively, and to the extent not, mortgaged, charged or assigned pursuant to clause 3.

4.2 Conversion of Floating Charge

- 4.2.1 Notwithstanding anything expressed or implied in this Debenture, the Security Trustee may, acting in its discretion, by notice to the Chargor, convert the floating charge created by clause 4.1 with immediate effect into a fixed charge over the relevant Charged Property if:
 - (i) an Event of Default has occurred and is continuing;
 - (ii) the Chargor creates or attempts to create any Encumbrance over all or any part of the Charged Property save as permitted by the Finance Documents; or
 - (iii) the Chargor disposes, or attempts to dispose of all or any part of the Charged Property (other than Charged Property that is only subject to the floating charge while it remains uncrystallised);
 - (iv) the Security Trustee, acting in good faith, consider all or any party of the Charged Property to be in danger of being seized or sold under or pursuant to any form of distress, attachment, execution or other legal process or otherwise to be in jeopardy; or
 - a receiver is appointed over all or any part of the Charged Property that is subject to the floating charge;
 - (vi) the Security Trustee becomes aware or have reason to believe that steps have been taken which, in the reasonable opinion of the Security Trustee, are reasonably likely to lead to the presentation of a petition to appoint an administrator in relation to the Chargor (or such administrator has been appointed) or to wind up the Chargor or that any petition has been presented, which in the opinion of the Security Trustee is reasonably likely to result in the winding up of the Chargor or the appointment of such administrator; or
 - (vii) the Chargor fails to comply, or takes or threatens to take any action which in the reasonable opinion of the Security Trustee is likely to result in the Chargor failing to comply with its obligations under clause 7.2.
- 4.2.2 The floating charge created by clause 4.1 may not be converted into a fixed charge solely by reason of:
 - (i) the obtaining of a moratorium; or
 - (ii) anything done with a view to obtaining a moratorium,

under the Insolvency Act 2000.

- 4.2.3 The floating charge hereby created shall (in addition to the circumstances in which the same will occur under general law) automatically be converted into a fixed charge:
 - (i) if an administrator is appointed or the Security Trustee receive notice of an intention to appoint an administrator; or
 - (ii) upon the convening of any meeting of the members of the Chargor to consider a resolution to voluntarily wind up the Chargor (or not to wind up the Chargor); or
 - (iii) upon the presentation of a petition to compulsorily wind up the Chargor; or
 - (iv) if there occurs in relation to the Chargor or any of its assets in any country or territory in which it is incorporated or carries on business or to the jurisdiction of whose courts it or any of its assets is subject any event which corresponds in that country or territory with any of those mentioned in this clause 4.2.3(i) to (iii) (inclusive); or
 - (v) if the Chargor fails to comply with its obligations under clause 7.2.
- 4.2.4 The floating charge hereby created is a qualifying floating charge for the purpose of paragraph 14 of Schedule B1 to the Insolvency Act 1986.
- 4.2.5 Any asset acquired by the Chargor after any crystallisation of the floating charge created under this Debenture which, but for that crystallisation, would be subject to a floating charge under this Debenture, shall (unless the Security Trustee confirm otherwise to the Chargor in writing) be charged to the Security Trustee by way of first fixed charge.

5. CONTINUING SECURITY

5.1 Continuing Security

The security constituted by this Debenture shall be continuing security which shall extend to all the Secured Obligations, shall not be considered as satisfied or discharged by any intermediate payment or settlement of all or any of the Secured Obligations and is in addition to and independent of and shall not prejudice, affect or merge with any other security which the Security Trustee or the Chargees may hold at any time for the Secured Obligations or any of them.

5.2 Avoided Payments

Where any release or discharge or other arrangement in respect of the Secured Obligations or any of them or any security the Security Trustee may hold therefor is made in reliance on any payment, security or other disposition which is avoided or must be restored in an insolvency, liquidation or otherwise without limitation, and whether or not the Security Trustee have conceded or compromised any claim that any payment, security or other disposition will or should be avoided, this Debenture and the security created hereby shall continue as if such release, discharge or other arrangement had not been made.

5.3 Immediate Recourse

The Security Trustee shall not be required to proceed against or enforce any other rights or security they may have or hold in respect of the Secured Obligations or claim payment from any other person before enforcing the security created hereby.

5.4 Waiver of Defences

This Debenture and the security created hereby shall not be affected by any act, omission or other circumstance which, but for this provision, would or might prejudice or discharge this Debenture or the security hereby created including (without limitation and whether or not known to the Chargees):

- the taking, variation, compromise, exchange, renewal, waiver or release of, or the failure or neglect to take, perfect or enforce any rights against, or security over assets of the Chargor or any other person, or any failure to observe any formality or other requirement in respect of any agreement or instrument or any failure to realise, or to realise the full value of, any security;
- 5.4.2 any incapacity, or lack of power or authority or any dissolution or change in the members or status of the Chargor or any other person;
- any variation (however fundamental and whether or not involving any increase in the liability of the Chargor thereunder) or replacement of a Finance Document or any other document or security so that references to that Finance Document or other documents or security in this Debenture shall include each such variation or replacement;
- 5.4.4 the unenforceability, illegality or invalidity of any obligation of any person under any Finance Document or of any other security the Security Trustee or the Chargees may hold in respect of the Secured Obligations (or any of them) or otherwise; or
- 5.4.5 any postponement, discharge, reduction or other circumstance affecting any obligation of the Chargor or any other person, whether resulting from any insolvency, liquidation or dissolution proceedings or from any law, regulation or order or otherwise.

5.5 Additional Security

This Debenture is in addition to and shall not in any way be prejudiced by, prejudicial to or affect or merge with any other security now or hereafter held by the Security Trustee or Chargees (or any agent or trustee on any of their behalf) for the Secured Obligations or any of them.

6. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

The Chargor makes the representations and warranties set out in this clause 6 and acknowledges that the Chargees have entered into the Finance Documents to which it is party in reliance on such representations and warranties.

6.1 Status

It is a company duly incorporated and validly existing under the laws of England and Wales. It has the power to owns its assets and carry on its business as it is being conducted.

6.2 Power and Authority

It has the power to enter into, perform and deliver, and has taken all necessary action to authorise its entry into, and its performance and delivery of this Debenture and to the transactions contemplated by this Debenture.

6.3 Non-conflict with other Obligations

The entry into and performance by it of, and the transactions contemplated by, this Debenture do not and will not conflict with:

- 6.3.1 any agreement, mortgage, bond or other instrument or treaty to which it is a party or which is binding upon it or any of its assets;
- 6.3.2 its constitutional documents and rules and regulations; or
- 6 3.3 any applicable law, regulation or official or judicial order.

6.4 Validity and Admissibility in Evidence

All acts, conditions and things required to be done, fulfilled and performed in order to:

- 6.4.1 enable it lawfully to enter into, exercise its rights under and perform and comply with the obligations expressed to be assumed by it in this Debenture;
- 6.4.2 ensure that the obligations expressed to be assumed by it in this Debenture are legal, valid and binding; and
- 6.4.3 make this Debenture admissible in evidence in England,

have been done, fulfilled and performed.

6.5 Filings and perfecting security

- The Chargor must (at their own cost) take all such action as is available to it as may be necessary or as may reasonably be requested by the Security Trustee to create, perfect, protect or maintain any of the Secured Obligations created, or purported to be created, by or pursuant to this Debenture or to vest title to any Charged Property in the Security Trustee or its nominee or any purchaser, or to facilitate the realisation of any Secured Obligation under this Debenture or the exercise of any of the rights, powers and remedies of the Security Trustee provided by or pursuant to this Debenture or by law, including:
- 6.5.1.1 making all filings and registrations with and paying all taxes and duties to the appropriate authorities (including Companies House, HM Land Registry and the Intellectual Property Office);
- 6.5.1.2 if required by the Security Trustee, making an application to HM Land Registry for a restriction to be placed on the Proprietorship Register of the Chargor's Real Property so that no disposition of any Properties by the Chargor is to be registered without the prior written consent of the Security Trustee; and
- 6.5.1.3 if required, depositing with the Security Trustee any deeds, certificates and other documents of title relating to the Charged Property; and
- 6.5.1.4 if required, delivering any relevant notices of assignment or charge in relation to the Charged Property.

6.6 Charged Property

As at the date hereof:

- except for any Encumbrances granted to the Security Trustee pursuant to this Debenture and any other Permitted Security, the Chargor is the legal and beneficial owner of all the Charged Property which it purports to charge on the date hereof;
- the Charged Property is all within the Chargor's possession and control and the terms of the Charged Property do not (except as contemplated by this Debenture) restrict or otherwise limit the right of the Chargor to transfer, mortgage, charge or pledge the Charged Property in favour of the Security Trustee.

6.7 Avoidance of Security

No Encumbrance expressed to be created by this Debenture is liable to be avoided, or otherwise set aside, on the liquidation or administration of the Chargor or otherwise.

6.8 No Breach of Laws

There is no breach of any law or regulation that materially and adversely affects the Charged Property or any of it.

7. UNDERTAKING

7.1 Duration and with Whom Made

The undertakings in this clause 7:

- 7.1.1 shall remain in force throughout the Security Period; and
- 7.1.2 are given by the Chargor to the Security Trustee.

7.2 Restrictions on Dealing

The Chargor undertakes that, save as permitted under the terms of this Debenture, it will not, without the prior written consent of the Security Trustee (such consent not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed):

- 7.2.1 create or permit to subsist any Encumbrance over all or any of its assets, rights or property other than Permitted Security; or
- 7.2.2 part with, lease, sell, transfer, assign or otherwise dispose of or agree to part with, lease, sell, transfer, assign or otherwise dispose of all or any part of its assets, rights or property or any interest therein, other than in the ordinary course of its business.

7 3 Untrue Representations

The Chargor shall notify the Security Trustee of the occurrence of any event which would result in any of the representations and warranties contained in clause 6 being untrue in any material respect.

8. ENFORCEMENT OF SECURITY

8.1 Security Enforceable

The security constituted hereby shall become immediately enforceable upon the occurrence of an Acceleration Event.

8.2 Enforcement

After the security constituted hereby has become enforceable the Security Trustee may in its absolute discretion enforce all or any part of the security created hereby and exercise any other rights or remedies conferred on it hereunder or by law in such manner as it sees fit and may without notice to the Chargor and without demand for payment apply the proceeds of such enforcement in or towards discharge of the Secured Obligations or otherwise in accordance with the terms hereof.

8.3 Statutory Powers

The powers conferred on mortgagees or receivers by the Law of Property Act 1925 and the Insolvency Act 1986 shall apply to this Debenture except insofar as they are expressly or impliedly excluded and, where there is ambiguity or conflict between the powers contained in such acts and those contained in this Debenture, those contained in this Debenture shall prevail. For the purposes of all powers implied by statute, the Secured Obligations shall be deemed to have become due and payable on the date hereof.

9. RECEIVER

9.1 Appointment of Receiver

- 9.1.1 At any time after the security constituted by this Debenture becomes enforceable in accordance with its terms or if an application is made for the appointment of or notice is given of intention to appoint an administrator in respect of the Chargor or if requested by the Chargor so requests, the Security Trustee may, in respect of the Chargor without further notice appoint under seal or in writing under its hand any one or more qualified persons to be a Receiver of the Charged Property in like manner in every respect as if the Security Trustee had become entitled under the Law of Property Act 1925 to exercise the power of sale thereby conferred. In this clause 9.1 "qualified person" means a person who, under the Insolvency Act 1986, is qualified to act as a receiver of the property of any company with respect to which he is appointed or (as the case may require) an administrative receiver of any such company.
- 9.1.2 The Security Trustee is not entitled to appoint a Receiver solely as a result of the obtaining of a moratorium (or anything done with a view to obtaining a moratorium) under the Insolvency Act 2000 except with leave of the Court.

9.2 Powers of Receiver

- 9.2.1 Every Receiver appointed in accordance with clause 9.1 shall have and be entitled to exercise all of the powers set out in clause 9.2.2 in addition to those conferred by the Law of Property Act 1925 on any receiver appointed thereunder. A Receiver who is an administrative receiver of the Chargor shall have the powers of an administrative receiver under the Insolvency Act 1986.
- 9.2.2 The powers referred to in the first sentence of clause 9.2.1 above are:

(i) Repair and Develop Properties

to undertake or complete any works of repair, building or development on the Properties;

(ii) Take Possession

to take immediate possession of, get in and collect the Charged Property or any part of it;

(iii) Dispose of Charged Property

to sell, exchange, assign, grant options and licences over, convert into money and realise any of the Charged Property by public auction or private contract and generally in such manner and on such terms as he shall think proper. Without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, he may do any of these things for a consideration consisting of cash, debentures or other obligations, shares, stock or other valuable consideration and any such consideration may be payable in a lump sum or by instalments spread over such period as he may think fit;

(iv) Sever Fixtures and Fittings

to sever and sell separately any fixtures or fittings from any Property without the consent of the Chargor;

(v) Leases

to let the Charged Property (where appropriate) for such term and at such rent (with or without a premium) as he may think proper and to accept a surrender of any lease or tenancy thereof on such terms as he may think fit (including the payment of money to a lessee or tenant on a surrender);

(vi) Manage or Reconstruct the Borrower's Business

to carry on, manage, develop, reconstruct, amalgamate or diversify or concur in carrying on, managing, developing, reconstructing, amalgamating or diversifying the business of the Chargor;

(vii) Employ Personnel and Advisors

to provide services and employ, or engage, such managers, contractors and other personnel and professional advisors on such terms as he thinks fit;

(viii) Compromise

to settle, adjust, refer to arbitration, compromise and arrange any claims, accounts, disputes, questions and demands with or by any person who is or claims to be a creditor of the Chargor or relating in any way to the Charged Property or any part of it:

(ix) Legal Actions

to bring, prosecute, enforce, defend and abandon any actions, suits and proceedings in relation to the Charged Property as may seem to him to be expedient;

(x) Receipts

to give valid receipts for all moneys and execute all assurances and things which may be proper or desirable for realising the Charged Property or any of it;

(xi) Subsidiaries

to form a subsidiary or subsidiaries of the Chargor and transfer to any such subsidiary the Charged Property or any part of it;

(xii) Sell Book Debts

to sell and assign all or any of the Book Debts in respect of which he is appointed in such manner, and generally on such terms and conditions, as he thinks fit;

(xiii) Improve the Equipment

to make substitutions of, or improvements to, the Equipment as he may think expedient; and

(xiv) General Powers

to do all such other acts and things as he may consider desirable or necessary for realising the Charged Property (or any part of it) or incidental or conducive to any of the matters, powers or authorities conferred on a Receiver under or by virtue of this Debenture; to exercise in relation to the Charged Property or any part thereof all such powers, authorities and things as he would be capable of exercising if he were the absolute beneficial owner of the same; and to use the name of the Chargor for all or any of such purposes.

9.3 Removal and Remuneration

The Security Trustee may from time to time by writing under its hand (subject to any requirement for an order of the court in the case of an administrative receiver) remove any Receiver appointed by it and may, whenever it may deem it expedient, appoint a new Receiver in the place of any Receiver whose appointment may for any reason have terminated and may from time to time fix the remuneration of any Receiver appointed by it.

9.4 Security Trustee's right to Exercise

To the fullest extent permitted by law, all or any of the powers, authorities and discretions which are conferred by this Debenture (either expressly or impliedly) upon a Receiver may be exercised by the Security Trustee at any time after the security constituted by this Debenture has become enforceable in relation to the whole or any part of the Charged Property without first appointing a Receiver of such property or any part thereof or notwithstanding the appointment of a Receiver of such property or any part thereof.

10. APPLICATION OF PROCEEDS

Any moneys received by the Security Trustee or by any Receiver appointed by it pursuant to this Debenture and/or under the powers hereby conferred shall, after the security hereby constituted shall have become enforceable be applied by the Security Trustee in or towards the discharge of the Secured Obligations in accordance with the provisions of the Secured Loan Agreement.

11. PROTECTION OF THIRD PARTIES

No purchaser, mortgagee or other person or company dealing with the Security Trustee or the Receiver or its or his agents shall be concerned to enquire whether the Secured Obligations have become due and payable or whether any power which the Receiver is purporting to exercise has become exercisable or whether any of the Secured Obligations remains outstanding or to see to the application of any money paid to the Security Trustee or to such Receiver.

12. TAXES

All payments by the Chargor under this Debenture shall be made without any deductions and free and clear of, and without deduction for or on account of, any taxes except, in the latter case, to the extent that a Chargor is required by law to make payment subject to any taxes. If any tax or amounts in respect of tax must be deducted, or any other deductions must be made, from any amounts payable or paid by the Chargor under this Debenture, the Chargor shall pay such additional amounts as may be necessary to ensure that the Security Trustee each receive a net amount equal to the full amount which it would have received had payment not been made subject to tax.

13. COSTS AND EXPENSES

13.1 Costs and Expenses

The Chargor shall, within 10 Business Days of written demand of the Security Trustee or any Receiver appointed hereunder, reimburse to the Security Trustee or any Receiver appointed hereunder on a full indemnity basis all properly incurred costs and expenses (including reasonable legal fees), and any VAT thereon, incurred by the Security Trustee or any Receiver appointed hereunder in connection with the release and/or preservation of any of its rights under this Debenture.

13.2 Stamp taxes

The Chargor shall pay all stamp, registration and other taxes to which this Debenture or any judgment given in connection herewith is or at any time may be subject and shall, on demand, indemnify the Security Trustee against any liabilities, costs, claims and expenses resulting from any failure to pay or delay in paying any such tax.

14. DELEGATION BY SECURITY TRUSTEE

The Security Trustee or any Receiver appointed hereunder may at any time and from time to time delegate by power of attorney or in any other manner to any person or persons all or any of the powers, authorities and discretions which are for the time being exercisable by the Security Trustee or any Receiver appointed hereunder under this Debenture in relation to the Charged Property or any of it. Any such delegation may be made upon such terms and

subject to such regulations as the Security Trustee or any Receiver appointed hereunder may think fit. The Security Trustee or any Receiver appointed hereunder shall not be in any way liable or responsible to the Chargor for any loss or damage arising from any act, default, omission or misconduct on the part of any such delegate PROVIDED THAT nothing in this clause 0 shall confer upon the Security Trustee the power to allow any delegate to subdelegate any of its rights, powers, authorities or discretions.

POWER OF ATTORNEY

15.1 Appointment

The Chargor hereby, by way of security and in order more fully to secure the performance of its obligations hereunder, irrevocably appoints the Security Trustee and every Receiver of the Charged Property (or any part of it) and every delegate appointed hereunder to be its attorney acting severally, and on its behalf and in its name or otherwise to execute and do all such assurances, acts and things which the Chargor is obliged to do under the covenants and provisions contained in this Debenture and generally in its and on its behalf to exercise all or any of the powers, authorities and discretions conferred by or pursuant to this Debenture or by statute on the Security Trustee or any such Receiver and (without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing) to seal and deliver and otherwise perfect any deed, assurance, agreement, instrument or act which it or he may reasonably deem proper in or for the purpose of exercising any of such powers, authorities and discretions.

15.2 Ratification

The Chargor hereby ratifies and confirms and agrees to ratify and confirm whatever any such attorney as is mentioned in clause 15.1 shall do or purport to do in the exercise or purported exercise of all or any of the powers, authorities and discretions referred to in such clause 15.1.

16. ASSIGNMENTS, ETC

The Chargor shall not be entitled to transfer or assign all or any of its rights or obligations in respect of this Debenture without the prior written consent of the Security Trustee.

17. FURTHER ASSURANCE

The Chargor must, if requested by the Security Trustee, execute in favour of the Security Trustee (or as the Security Trustee direct) such further legal or other assignments or mortgages of, charges on or transfers of the Secured Obligations as the Security Trustee require to secure the payment and discharge of the Secured Obligations.

18. WAIVERS & REMEDIES CUMULATIVE

18.1 Waivers & remedies cumulative

- 18.1.1 The rights of the Security Trustee under this Debenture:
 - may be exercised as often as the Security Trustee deem necessary (in its absolute discretion);
 - (ii) are cumulative and not exclusive of any rights provided by law; and
 - (iii) may be waived only in writing and specifically.

Delay in exercising or non-exercise of any such right shall not be construed as a waiver of that right.

19. NOTICES

19.1 Communications in Writing

A notice, other communication or document given under this Debenture shall be in writing and signed by or on behalf of the person giving it and, unless otherwise stated, may be made or delivered personally or posted in accordance with clause 19.3.

19.2 Addresses

The address (and the department or officer, if any, for whose attention the notice, other communication or document is to be made or delivered) of each party for any notice, communication or document to be made or delivered under or in connection with this Debenture is that identified at the beginning of this Debenture or any substitute address or department or officer as the relevant party notifies to the other party by not less than five Business Days' notice.

19.3 Delivery

- 19.3.1 Any notice, other communication or document so addressed shall be deemed to have been received:
 - (i) if personally delivered, at the time of delivery;
 - (ii) if sent by pre-paid first-class post, recorded delivery or registered post, two Business Days after the date of posting to the relevant address; and
 - (iii) if sent by registered air-mail, five Business Days after the date of posting to the relevant address:

and, if a particular department or officer is specified as part of its address details provided under clause 19.2, if addressed to that department or officer;

19.3.2 For the avoidance of doubt, notice given under this Debenture shall not be validly served if given by e-mail.

20. COUNTERPARTS AND EFFECTIVENESS

20.1 Counterparts

This Debenture may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which when executed and delivered constitutes an original of this Debenture, but all the counterparts shall together constitute one and the same agreement.

20.2 Effectiveness

This Debenture shall come into effect as a Deed on the date set forth above.

21. COVENANT TO RELEASE

21.1 Covenant to Release

Upon the expiry of the Security Period (but not otherwise), the Security Trustee shall, at the request and cost of the Chargor, execute and do all such deeds, acts and things as may be necessary to release the Charged Property from the security constituted and to reassign the property and assets assigned to the Security Trustee hereby or pursuant hereto.

22. GOVERNING LAW

This Debenture and any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with it shall be governed by the construed in accordance with English law.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF THIS DEBENTURE HAS BEEN EXECUTED AS A DEED by the Chargor and the Chargees.

THE CHARGOR

Executed as a deed by EIGHT19 LIMITED acting by a Director in the presence of:	Director Print name CLAUSIO MARINELLI
Witness signature	en ve
Witness name	Guy Furight 27 Orchard Road, Sauxton
Address	27 Orchard Rood, Sauxton Cambridge, CB22 3BE
THE CHARGEES	
Executed as a deed by IP2IPO LIMITED acting by a Director in the presence of:	Director Print name.
Witness signature	
Witness name	
Address	
Executed as a deed by	,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,
CLARIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED acting by a Director	Director
in the presence of:	Print name
Witness signature	
Witness name	
Address	
Executed as a deed by PROVIDENCE INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED acting by a Director in the presence of:	Director Print name
Witness signature	
Witness name	
Address	

THE CHARGOR

Executed as a deed by EIGHT19 LIMITED acting by a Director in the presence of	Director Print name
Witness signature	
Witness name	
Address	
THE CHARGEES Executed as a deed by	
IP2IPO LIMITED acting by a Director in the presence of:	Director Print nameDAYNES
Witness signature	NIRbakbas
Witness name	NILLY TABATAGAI
Address	Walbrook Building 25. Walbrook London EQ4N 8AF
Executed as a deed by CLARIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED acting by a Director in the presence of:	Director Print name
Witness signature	
Witness name	
Address	
Executed as a deed by PROVIDENCE INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED acting by a Director in the presence of	Director Print name
Witness signature	
Witness name	
Address	

THE CHARGOR

Executed as a deed by EIGHT19 LIMITED acting by a Director in the presence of:	Director Print name
Witness signature	
Witness name	
Address	
THE CHARGEES Executed as a deed by IP2IPO LIMITED acting by a Director in the presence of:	Director Print name
Witness signature	
Witness name	
Executed as a deed by CLARIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED acting by a Director in the presence of:	Director Print name William G Harries Patricia Cameron
Witness signature	
Witness name	
Address Executed as a deed by PROVIDENCE INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED	Director Print name William G Harries Patricia Cameron
acting by a Director in the presence of: Witness signature	JANCLOSCA JOHNNE ANDERSON
Witness name	Grape House, 66-72 Espericide, St Helich Joseph
Address	St Helich Joseph

Executed as a deed by **LUCROS INVESTMENT B.V.** acting by a Director in the presence of:

Witness signature

Witness name

Address

Director E Berkhout

n Stall man

Kleine Hortweg 113, Handen